ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COMM TTEE
April 1, 2003
2:28 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative JimHolm Co-Chair
Representati ve Beverly Masek, Co-Chair
Representati ve Hugh Fate
Representative Vic Kohring
Representati ve Dan (Ogg

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Mary Kapsner
Representative Al bert Kookesh

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 93

"An Act relating to boating safety; repealing secs. 3, 5, 7, 9,
11, 14, 16, 18, 20, 23, 26, 27, and 30, ch. 28, SLA 2000; and
providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 93(TRA) OUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 213
"An Act relating to a provisional driver's license and to
i ssuance of a driver's license; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD AND HELD
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 71(TRA)
"An Act relating to funding for transportation projects; and
providing for an effective date."”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

SENATE BILL NO 83
"An Act nam ng the Sven Haakanson, Sr. Airport at O d Harbor."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -1- April 1, 2003



BILL: HB 93
SHORT TI TLE: REPEAL BOATI NG SAFETY SUNSET
SPONSOR(S) :  REPRESENTATI VE( S) WEYHRAUCH

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

02/ 12/ 03 0186 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 12/ 03 0186 (H) TRA, STA

02/ 18/ 03 (H) TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 18/ 03 (H) <Bi || Hearing Postponed to
2/ 25/ 03> -- Meeting Cancel ed

02/ 25/ 03 (H TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 25/ 03 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 25/ 03 (H) M NUTE( TRA)

03/ 27/ 03 (H TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 27/ 03 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 01/ 03 (H) TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 213
SHORT TI TLE: PROVI SI ONAL DRI VER S LI CENSE
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) WEYHRAUCH

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

03/ 26/ 03 0640 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

03/ 26/ 03 0640 (H TRA, L&C

03/ 26/ 03 0640 (H REFERRED TO TRANSPORTATI ON

04/ 01/ 03 (H) TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

LI NDA SYLVESTER, St aff

to Representative Bruce Weyhrauch

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the proposed conmmttee substitute
for HB 93 and presented HB 213 on behalf of Representative
Weyhrauch, the bills' sponsor.

GREGORY BROMWNI NG, Assi stant Chief of Police

Juneau Pol i ce Departnent

Cty and Borough of Juneau

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 213 and answer
questions fromthe nenbers.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 2- April 1, 2003



KERRY HENNI NGS, Driver Licensing Manager

Di vision of Mdtor Vehicles

Department of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 213 and answered
questions fromthe nenbers.

CHRI STI NE ROW NSK
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 213.

AL NEAR
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 213.

Cl NDY CASHEN, Director

Mot hers Agai nst Drunk Driving, Juneau Chapter
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 213.

VESTON El LER, Seni or

Juneau- Dougl as Hi gh School

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 213.

JOHN GEORGE, Lobbyi st

for National Association of |Independent |Insurers
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 213.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-14, SIDE A
Number 0001

COCHAIR JIM HOLM called the House Transportation Standing
Committee neeting to order at 2:28 p.m Represent ati ves Hol m
Masek, Fate, and Kohring were present at the call to order.
Representative Ogg arrived as the nmeeting was in progress.

HB 93- REPEAL BOATI NG SAFETY SUNSET

CO CHAIR HOLM announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 93, "An Act relating to boating safety;
repealing secs. 3, 5, 7, 9, 11, 14, 16, 18, 20, 23, 26, 27, and
30, ch. 28, SLA 2000; and providing for an effective date."

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 3- April 1, 2003



Nunber 0072

CO CHAIR MASEK noved to adopt the proposed conmmttee substitute
(CS) Version 23-LS0230\Q Ford, 3/21/03, as a work draft; she
request ed unani nous consent.

CO CHAIR HOLM announced that w thout objection Version Q was
before the conmttee.

Nunber 0123

LI NDA SYLVESTER, Staff to Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Al aska
State Legislature, spoke on behalf of the bill's sponsor,
explaining that the proposed conmmttee substitute elimnates
non-notori zed boats from the requirenment for registration. She
reported that this was a conpromse that was suitable to the
U S. Coast Guard (USCG. Ms. Sylvester indicated that M ke
Fol kerts fromthe USCG was avail able to answer questi ons.

Number 0205

COCHAIR MASEK noved to report the proposed CS for HB 93
[ Version 23-LS0230\Q Ford, 3/21/03] out of commttee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and t he acconpanying fiscal note.

Number 0235

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG obj ected, stating that he appreciated the
sponsor's efforts but his confort |evel was not high enough to
warrant support of the |egislation. He said that proper
organi zations and boating associations have proven that safety
in the boating industry can be pronoted and safety training can

be provided w thout further involvenent by governnent. He said
he had voiced concerns in a previous neeting, when he indicated
that the bill was encroaching on "individual rights, freedons,
and |iberties" and that "it inposes another |ayer of governnent

and anot her |ayer of rules.”

The conmittee took an at-ease from2:40 to 2:42 p. m

Number 0316

CO CHAIR MASEK said she agreed with Representative Kohring, but
woul d not object to noving the bill out of committee.

Nunmber 0366

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -4- April 1, 2003



A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Fate, (Ogg, Masek

and Hol m voted in favor of reporting the proposed CS for HB 93
[ Ver si on 23-LS0230\ Q Ford, 3/ 21/ 03] from committee.
Representative Kohring voted against it. Therefore, CSHB
93(TRA) was reported out of the House Transportation Standing
Commttee by a vote of 4-1.

HB 213- PROVI SI ONAL DRI VER' S LI CENSE

Nunber 0377

CO CHAI R HOLM announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 213, "An Act relating to a provisional driver's
license and to issuance of a driver's license; and providing for
an effective date."

Number 0450

LI NDA SYLVESTER, Staff to Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Al aska
State Legislature, spoke on behalf of the bill's sponsor. She
told the commttee Representative Weyhrauch introduced HB 213 at
the request of Mdthers Against Drunk Drivers (MADD), and while
the bill does not address drunk driving or sanctions for drunk
driving, it is a combnsense approach to addressing a serious
probl em every state in the nation is experiencing. That problem
i s inexperienced, young, novice drivers, she said.

M5. SYLVESTER explained that under current law when an
i ndi vidual turns 14 years old he/she can go to the Division of
Mot or Vehicles (DW), take a know edge test, and get a permt.
That individual is required to hold the permt for six nonths.
When the individual is 16 years old, he/she can take a road test
and if passed, that 16-year-old is able to go out on the roads
and drive with no restrictions at all. Ms. Sylvester said that
the period of tinme when a 16-year-old gets a license is a very
dangerous tine. She told the menbers that statistics show that
there is a huge spike in car accidents, fatalities, and
injuries, and HB 213 seeks to address that period of tine.

Number 0504

M5. SYLVESTER told the menbers that HB 213 creates a three-
tiered system that all young drivers wll be required to go
t hr ough. When a youth who is 14 years old, which is youngest
age an individual can seek to get a driver's license [permt],
he/ she takes a know edge test, and [if passed] a permt is
i ssued. Ms. Sylvester said there is no change in that part of

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 5- April 1, 2003



t he process. However, when an individual is 16 years old and
has had a permt for six nonths and has taken a road test,
hi s/ her parent will have to certify that the youth has had at
| east 50 hours of driving experience, 10 of which are at
nighttine. This would be a sinple certification on a form that

hi s/ her parent, enployer, or |egal guardian nust sign. From
that point on, he/she would get a driver's license, but would be
in another tier which allows for a provisional |icense that

woul d have restrictions on the individual's ability to drive.

MS. SYLVESTER said that the nost inportant restriction, while it
sounds severe, it is a life-saving step, which would prohibit
these youth from driving with other teenagers in the vehicle
Statistics show that this is a critical problem When ot her
kids are in the car, the driver can be distracted and that is
when acci dents happen. This period of time [restriction] would
| ast for one year. So he/she would be prohibited from having
anyone in the vehicle except his/her parent or an individual who
is over 25 years old. The other restriction is a prohibition on
nighttinme driving, frommdnight to 5 a.m; however, there is an
al l omance for a work permt. The person will have to state
hi s/ her case to the DW, simlar to the process now in place for
an all owance when a person has a DW [driving while intoxicated
convi ction].

Number 0633
M5. SYLVESTER went on to say that there is one other requirenent
in obtaining a provisional license and that is that he/she nust

be citation-free for six nonths prior to application.

M5. SYLVESTER explained that when an individual has had a

provisional |icense for one year, he/she goes back to DW to
apply for an unrestricted |icense. Division of Mdtor Vehicles
(DW) would do a check to confirm the individual has had a
provi sional |icense for one year, and to see if there have been
citations of any kind. In order to get an unrestricted license
the individual would have to have a clean record. She said
there is a point system whereby every infraction would result in
points taken away until an individual reaches 12 points [when
the license would be revoked]. She reiterated that because

teenage drivers are novices, they nust remain citation-free to
get an unrestricted |icense. Ms. Sylvester clarified that this

portion of the bill addresses youths who are between 16 and 18
years old. She explained that an adult who had never l|earned to
drive is not required to go through this process. This bill

woul d only apply to young drivers.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 6- April 1, 2003



Nunmber 0748

M5. SYLVESTER told the commttee that she knows this is a
startling piece of legislation, but [the nerits of inplenenting
this bill] can be substantiated with research.

Nunmber 0808

GREGORY BROMNI NG, Assistant Chief of Police, Juneau Police
Departnment, City and Borough of Juneau, testified in support of
HB 213 and answer questions from the nenbers. M. Browning
expl ai ned that he received short notice of the hearing and does
not have a lot of statistics with him but wanted to testify in
support of this bill. He said he believes it is a good,
commonsense approach to saving lives in Al aska. M. Browni ng
told the nmenbers he has 24 years' experience as a police officer
and has seen his share of mdnight shifts and bad accidents
i nvol vi ng yout hs.

Nunmber 0848

MR. BROMING said that there are two parts of the bill that
strike a chord with himin making a | ot of sense. Teenagers are
very susceptible to peer pressure and distractions while
driving, and the section that prohibits teenagers from having
other youths in their vehicles [is an inportant provision]. He
told the commttee that even if a good kid is a good driver, [if
that kid is put in a position with] a bunch of kids in the car
| ate at night, things can happen. He told the commttee he has
seen tragedy result from those kinds of circunstances severa
tines.

Nunber 0877

MR. BROMING told the conmttee that he believes the tine
elenment in the bill, basically prohibiting youths from driving
between mdnight and 5 a.m, will be very effective as well. He

said there is very little legitimte reason for youths that age
to be out on the streets that tinme of night. Driving then tends
to be nore for a recreational pur pose, rather than a
transportation purpose. He said his opinion is that it is an
invitation for kids to get into trouble and that they are very
much at risk. M. Browning summarized his comments by saying
that the Juneau Police Departnent is supportive of the bill and
believes it is an effective way of reducing fatalities in

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -7- April 1, 2003



Al aska. He said he is fairly confident that nobst police
departnments in the state would agree with him

Number 0930

REPRESENTATI VE OGG commented that many teens go to pronms and
dances and asked what tinme those functions usually get out.

MR. BROMI NG responded that nost are out at mdnight, but 1 a.m
woul d be the | atest.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked if it would nmake sense to give youths a
little bit of time to get home froma prom or dance.

MR BROMING replied that a field officer would have enough
di scretion that he/she would not enforce the law in that
particular case if it were clear the youths were on their way
home from a prom They mght verify that the promis actually
taki ng pl ace. He questioned that the law could be designed
around every concei vabl e event. There may be a way to describe
an exenption beyond work, since there are probably sonme other
|l egitimate reasons for youths to be out past mdnight, but nost
of the tinme, there is not. They are just out having a good
time, and that is the tinme they get in trouble.

Nunber 1012

REPRESENTATI VE OGG comrented that he believes the promis a good
social function for the youths. If the time were noved to 1
a.m, that would cover it.

MR. BROWNI NG expl ained that the tinme period between m dnight and
1 am 1is a dangerous tine. He told the commttee he has
observed that tine and tine again. However, he said he agrees
that he would not want to restrict kids fromgoing to a function
like a prom He said he believes with laws such as this, a
police officer's discretion cones into effect to sone degree.

CO CHAI R HOLM asked about the term "infraction” which is on page
2, line 27, of the bill. He asked M. Browning to clarify the
meani ng of this term

MR. BROMI NG responded that neans it is the lowest |evel of
violation of Alaska law. It is not even a m sdeneanor.

Nunber 1100

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 8- April 1, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE FATE asked, if it is only an infraction to have
other teenagers in the car, would not a 16-year-old wth a
provisional license just go ahead and fill his/her car wth
teenagers and be in the sane danger that is purported to be in
the first place? What is to prevent that?

Nunber 1120

MR. BROMI NG asked if Representative Fate was proposing that
this be a nore serious offense than an infraction.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE responded that he is not proposing that, but
asked what is to prevent youths from [breaking the |aw] even if
there is a nore serious penalty.

MR. BROWNI NG responded that that could be said of any |aw
There will be a penalty in the cost of insurance if they are
caught. He said he believes this is better than nothing.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE commented that he is not so sure this is
better than nothing. Parents may have sonmething to do wth
this. He said he does not believe draconian regulations can
ever take the place of good parental training.

MR. BROMNI NG responded that he agrees with Representative Fate.
Nunmber 1174

KERRY HENNI NGS, Driver Licensing Manager, D vision of Mtor
Vehi cl es, Departnent of Administration, testified in support of
HB 213 and answered questions from the nenbers. She said DW
supports the enhancenents of provisional |icensing that are
introduced in this bill. Driving is a skill that inproves with
experience, and in the case of teenage drivers, inproves wth
maturity. Ms. Hennings said this bill addresses several issues
and all the steps proposed are steps recommended by the Nati onal
Hi ghway Traffic Safety Adm nistration. She said she believes
t hey have proven to be effective in many cases. This bill sets
up a reward for teenagers with a good driving record because
they do get to nove on to the next step and proceed with their
driving career.

M5. HENNINGS commented on earlier testinony about consequences
of infractions. She explained that an infraction for breaking
the rules would stop a teenager from noving on to the next step,
where the driver could have passengers and could get sone
benefits by driving safely.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 9- April 1, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE OGG said his question is really a followup to
Representative Fate's question. If an individual does get an
infraction, what happens to his/her |icense?

M5. HENNING said the infraction would go on his/her driving

record as a violation. It may or may not have a point val ue.
That has not been determ ned. What it would nean is that the
i ndividual would have to remain under a provisional |icense

until the individual could go six nonths w thout being cited.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked at what point an individual would | ose
hi s/ her provisional |icense so that if he/she continued this
activity, the individual would conme under the other |laws of the
state.

M5. HENNI NGS responded that if there were no points tied to the
citations, he/she would not reach a suspension status unless
there was other driving behavior [which warranted suspension].

Nunber 1323

CHRI STINE RON NSKI testified in support of HB 213. She told the
commttee she is working with a group who hopes to open a MADD
chapter in Fairbanks, but it is not official yet, so she is
speaki ng today representing only herself. She said she believes
that HB 213 wll help to protect teenagers and asked the
commttee to support graduated driver's |licenses (CDLS).

Number 1422

AL NEAR testified in support of HB 213. M. Near told the
committee that while he is a nenber of MADD, he is speaking on
his own behalf. He said he did sone research on the statistics,
which he shared with the conmttee. He pointed out that there
is a docunment that was recently published by the Insurance
Information Institute that provides sone interesting national
statistics that cone fromreliable sources such as the Nationa
Hi ghway Traffic Safety Adm nistration. M. Near said he
believes HB 213 will really inpact sone of these statistics in
Al aska. Mot or vehicle accidents are the | eading cause of death
of 15-to 20-year-olds. The crash rate for teens ages 16 and 17
is triple the rate of 18- or-19-year-olds. In 2000, nore than
40 percent of notor vehicle teenage deaths occurred between 9
p.m and 6 a.m Also in 2000, 63 percent of passenger deaths
occurred in crashes when other teen drivers were at the wheel.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -10- April 1, 2003



Nunber 1486

MR. NEAR said he believes if HB 213 passes the | egislature, each
of these factors wll be addressed. The graduated driver's
| i cense concept is new, but has been adopted by three-quarters
of the United States. Florida was the first state to adopt it
in 1996. Since the |aw was passed there has been a 21 percent
decrease in teenage driver deaths. M. Near told the conmttee
that there has been less tinme to evaluate the effects in other
states, but simlar results are being seen.

MR. NEAR expl ained that in other countries where the GDL concept
has been in place longer, nore conprehensive studies support
these early nunbers. In Nova Scotia, where it was inplenented
in 1994, there has seen a 51 percent decline in crashes
i nvol ving begi nner drivers between the ages of 16 to 17 years.
He said 12 new studies released in February by the nonprofit
Nati onal Safety Council showed that a tiered |icensing approach
reduced teen crashes by 58 percent. M. Near sumarized his
comments by saying that the GDL concept works and urged the
commttee to support HB 213.

Nunmber 1556

CINDY CASHEN, Director, Mthers Against Drunk Driving, Juneau
Chapter, testified in support of HB 213. She told the conmttee
that MADD advocates all states to adopt |laws that would provide
that persons under 21 receive driver's |icenses which are nore

restrictive than full |icenses. MADD urges that violations
woul d result in driver inprovenent actions, |icense revocation
civil sanctions, crimnal sanctions, and penalties. She said

MADD al so supports the adoption of GDL privileges for persons
under 21. Ms. Cashen shared her belief that early driving
experiences nust be acquired in a lowrisk environnment wth
extended restriction, no alcohol wuse, seatbelt enforcenent,
limtations on nighttine driving, and teenage passengers. She
said she believes that driving is a privilege and not a right.

Nunmber 1615

M5. CASHEN told the menbers that in the year 2000, Al askan
drivers between the ages of 16 and 20 were in 3,889 crashes

The next cl osest age group was the 20- to-25-year-olds, but that
nunber dropped to 2,700, a significant difference which neans
that 15.9 percent of all traffic crashes occurred wth 16- to
20-year-old Alaskans. That is the highest percentage of all age
groups. M. Cashen said that the national percentage rates that

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -11- April 1, 2003



M. Near shared wth the conmttee match Al aska's rate. She
noted the rates are not going down; they are staying the sanme or

slightly going up.

Nunber 1654
M5. CASHEN told the commttee as responsible adults, "it is
inportant to protect our young." The current system is not

wor ki ng, but with the support of all the agencies there is an
answer to this, which is the graduated driver's |icense program
Last year the National Safety Council published a 115-page
summary of an international synposium where directors of
i nsurance conpanies, hospitals, legislators, |aw enforcenent,
federal, state, and nonprofit agencies, all of those affected by
young people dying on the roads, net to share and discuss data
on our GDL progranms in Canada, New Zealand, and the United
St at es.

MS5. CASHEN shared that there is broad support by both parents
and teenagers who are in GDL prograns. In a survey of 520
Ontario parents whose teenagers were involved in GDL prograns,
83 percent approved of the program Ei ghty-ni ne percent of the
parents with teens in the |earner stage agreed with the program
In Nova Scotia, a survey of 450 teenagers between the ages of 16
and 18 and 500 parents of teenagers that age found that 87
percent of the parents and 61 percent of the teenagers in the
| earner stage voiced approval of the GDL program She said in
M chi gan, teenagers were accumrmulating nore than the required 50
hours of supervised driving practice. In a survey of parents it
was reported that an average 75 hours of practice [took place];
thus parents were taking nore tinme to supervise their student's
driving than required. A California survey showed 81 percent of
parents had driven at least the 50 hours required, 79 percent
said they had net the requirenent of 10 hours of practice at
night, and nost Anmerican parents favor nighttinme driving
restrictions. She said she believes these nunbers say that the
graduated driver's license is supported by a vast mgjority of
parents and those teens who are in the program

Nunber 1746

M5. CASHEN told the conmmttee that in a recent Juneau "Youth in
Action" survey at the high school, nine out of ten students were
in favor of Representative Wyhrauch's bill. The one student
[who voted against it] was her son, who was mad at her that day,
she sai d.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -12- April 1, 2003



IVS. CASHEN explained that the infraction portion 1is an
i ncentive. She said kids will avoid getting an infraction so
they have a clean record and can nove on to the next |icense.
She said studies show this [incentive] works.

M5. CASHEN commented on an earlier question on the mdnight to 1
a.m crashes by saying that according to the H ghway Safety
Di vi sion [ Al aska Hi ghway Saf ety Ofice, Depar t ment of
Transportation & Public Facilities], in 2000 Al askan al cohol -
rel ated highway crashes between mdnight and 2 a.m, were 168,
and between 2 a.m and 4 am were 177. Those two were the
hi ghest nunbers. She said that neans that between m dnight and
2 a.m, 15 percent of crashes occurred. Ms. Cashen said that
schools in other states have set the hours back to accomnmodate
the tine it takes the students to get hone from prons, dances,

or other healthy events. She said it has not been a problem
and the parents and teenagers approve of this change. Ms.
Cashen thanked the conmttee for hearing the bill and

Representative Weyhrauch for introducing it.
Nunber 1842
VESTON EI LER, Senior, Juneau-Douglas H gh School, testified in

support of HB 213. He said that he supports this bill because
it creates a way for young drivers to gain driving experience

while mnimzing risks to thensel ves and others. He told the
committee he believes this bill wll address the risks facing
young teenage drivers. For instance, he said, teens are nore

likely to die from a car crash than from anything else.
Teenagers represent 7 percent of the driving population, yet
constitute 14 percent of all driving fatalities. He said he has
personally observed his peers in Juneau involved in reckless
driving, driving accidents, driving under the influence, and one
incident that resulted in death. This has a substantial i npact
on the school and community. M. Eiler said that he believes
the graduated driver's |license program could nake a difference.
It has been adopted by 36 states, Canada, and New Zeal and, and
it has been shown to have an inpact. For instance, when it was
introduced in North Carolina, the nunber of 16-year-olds that
were involved in fatal crashes went down by over 57 percent, he
told the committee. This system could be the key to counter-
acting the problens of peer pressure, substance abuse while
driving, and serious accidents and/or death. M. Eiler thanked
the conmittee for the opportunity to testify and urged the
commttee to support HB 213.

Number 1982

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -13- April 1, 2003



CO- CHAIR HOLM thank M. Eiler for testifying and told him he was
very inpressed with his testinony.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE asked M. Eiler if there are still driver
education courses in high school.

MR. EILER responded that Juneau-Douglas H gh School did start a
responsi bl e-driving course this year. He comented that it is
the first driver's education course that he has seen in the
comunity for vyears. He explained that he went through a
private school of driving that then helps with a reduction in
i nsurance prem uns; however, that program is in no way
conparable to a school curricul um

REPRESENTATI VE FATE noted that the sponsor statenent says that a
youth may be eligible for a provisional license if the youth has
held a learner's permt for six nonths and a parent certifies
that the youth has at |east 50 hours of driving experience, 10
of which nmust be at nighttine. He pointed out that there is no
[reference to a] formal driver's education course, such as the
one M. Eler had in the private school, or an educational
program where there is hands-on driving in a high school, or
ot her public school setting. He asked Ms. Sylvester if that is
an oversight in the bill or is it an intentional [om ssion].

MS. SYLVESTER responded that it was not an oversight to |eave
out driver's education because the research shows that it has a
very negligible effect on accident rates. The research shows
that the nost inportant elenent for youths to learn how to drive
is to have that steady, w se parent sitting next to them for a
period of tinme. The effect of a professional driver education
conpany holding the youth's permt or providing a |onger
i nstructional period can be val uable, she commented.

Number 2050

REPRESENTATI VE = FATE asked what the requirenent is for
eligibility for a provisional |icense. It is not the standard
by which a youth nust drive, which is sonething el se.

MS. SYLVESTER responded that once the youth has his/her permt,
and has passed the road test, the youth is free to drive alone,
but the only passenger allowed in the vehicle is a passenger
over the age of 25 or a parent.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -14- April 1, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE FATE replied that he hoped that a formal driver's
education, either private or public, would not be thrust aside
only because it is not enbodied clearly in the |anguage of this
| egi sl ati on.

COCHAIR HOLM said that as a former truck driver, he found it
odd that individuals can get driver's licenses, but there is no
requi renent that they have to learn how to drive well. He asked
if there is a log nmechanismthat the parents conplete.

M5. SYLVESTER responded that there is no way to verify a log, so
the parent could be conpletely m srepresenting what has actually
happened. There is no way to enforce or nonitor this, but it
gives a gquideline of what parents should be doing. She
clarified that nowhere in the discussion was a |ogbook ever
menti oned.

Nunber 2132

CO CHAIR HOLM asked Ms. Sylvester if a representation by the
parent or by the provisional licensee is sufficient.

MS. SYLVESTER said that is correct. Wen a parent certifies
this statenent, there is sonme liability for perjury involved

because the parents are making a statenent to the Division of
Motor Vehicles that the youth has 50 hours of driving
experience, 10 of which were at night. Ms. Sylvester said that
the sponsor would entertain strengthening the |anguage in the
bill.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG inquired about a couple of discrepancies
bet ween the sponsor's statement and the legislation itself. He
noted that the sponsor statenent refers to 1 a.m, but the bil
says mdnight, and asked if there is sone reason why the tine
was noved back to mdnight. Representative Ogg asked Ms.
Sylvester to clarify this.

MS. SYLVESTER said that m dnight was the sponsor's highest hope,
but she said she also has another sponsor statenent prepared
with the 1 a.m deadline. She said she fully inmagines that the
lam tine will prevail.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG commented that the sponsor statenent does not

refer to the |anguage on page 2, lines 25-26, where it refers to
youths driving to and fromtheir place of enploynment on the nost
direct route avail able. He pointed out that this is an

exception that allows the youth to drive between mdnight and 5

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -15- April 1, 2003



a.m wthout the acconpaninent of his/her parent. The youth
woul d have to prove that he/she was going to or from work and
then there would also have to be sonme discussion as to whether
this is the nost direct route. Representative Ogg asked if this
woul d present a problem for enforcenent officers.

M5. SYLVESTER responded that she does not think it would because
it follows the sane procedure of a limted license. |If there is
a reason for an exenption, the individual would make his/her
case to DW and DW would issue a limted Iicense. She
explained that it is a piece of paper that is carried with the
driver. If pulled over, the youth would have to nake his/her
case to the police officer. She said the intent is to nmake this
flexible and work in the real world, and the system is already
in place to issue a restricted license for driving to work.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said that in the attached appendi x there are
several pages of statistics and as he understands it, they are
national statistics. He asked if these [statistics] have been
conpared with Alaska's statistics.

M5. SYLVESTER replied that in the back of the packet are

statistics from Alaska that show accidents and injuries. She
asked the nenbers to look at the index of supporting
docunentation, which follows the sponsor statenent. MVe.

Sylvester told the commttee that there is sone rough data on
traffic accidents and there are national statistics as well.

M5. SYLVESTER referred to Table A 7[1], "Persons Involved in
2000 Traffic Accidents by Age and Injury Severity," where it
shows that there is a huge spike in traffic accidents between
the ages of 16 and 20.

TAPE 03-14, SIDE B
Number 2355

M5. SYLVESTER shared that her interest in this issue started
many years ago when she was a paralegal for a personal injury

attorney. She said the area of the practice that she nanaged
was the soft-tissue injuries, which resulted from rear-ending
acci dents. She said that she became angry because she would

work with people who would get into "fender-benders” w th young
kids. [It was difficult because when] an ol der person gets into
this kind of an accident and has experienced a whiplash injury,
those people do not recover. She said that for the rest of
their lives they live with the repercussions of these injuries;
however, the young people nove on, get a new car from nom and

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -16- April 1, 2003



dad, and do not suffer from the result of these accidents
because their bodies are flexible and not fragile |like the ol der
peopl e.

MS. SYLVESTER shared a terrifying experience she had one night
when conmi ng honme froma high school nusical with her kids in the
car, and the roads were icy. She said a car full of teenagers
screaned right by her going down Egan Drive, and sure enough,
they were in an accident. The next week the victimin the other

car cane [into her office]. She had lost all of her front
teeth, had back pain, and had a broken arm Ms. Sylvester said
that while this bill wll save kids' Ilives, there are 5,000
accidents [in which there are no fatalities]. She summarized by
sayi ng she believes this bill is the solution to this problem
Number 2258

JOHN GEORGE, Lobbyist for National Association of Independent
Insurers, testified in support of HB 213 because [provisional
driver's licenses] do work in other states. He said he knows
that nost of the nenbers know him as an insurance | obbyist, but
he said he has served 21 years as a volunteer in the fire
departnent and just retired last year as the fire chief of the
Auke Bay [fire departnent]. |In those years, he went to a |ot of
car wecks between mdnight and 5 a.m and pulled teenagers out,
hel d their hands, and put them in anbul ances, and he said there
is nothing worse. M. George said he believes this is an
inportant step in preventing sone of those accidents. He told
the nenbers that one benefit is getting the parents involved
with their teenagers. That involvenent is lacking in a lot of
areas. It is beneficial to have the teenager say to his or her
parent, "Let's go driving; | need the experience." The parent
is then there and helping the <child develop responsible
attitudes. That is an incredible thing and may carry over to
ot her areas of their |ives.

MR CGEORGE told the nmenbers that he is a driver trainer for
Princess Tours, training adults to drive tour buses. He said he
found that adults who drove on the famly farmat 12, 13, and 14
years old, and were trained by their parents, are incredibly
good drivers. He went on to say that his experience with those
who did not learn to drive that way often is not that good. For
exanple, stop signs nean really slow down a lot, and speed
limts are only for guidance. He summarized his conments to say
it really does nake a difference in who teaches youths to drive
and parental supervision is really inportant.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -17- April 1, 2003



COCHAIR HOLM agreed with M. George that parental guidance
cannot be di scount ed.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said that in some of the statistics it shows
25 percent of fatally injured drivers fromages 16 to 20 in 1995
had a bl ood al cohol concentration at or above the .10 percent
[limt], even though they were all under the |egal drinking age.
He asked M. GCeorge if there has been any effort to mtigate
that problem since that problem certainly has conpounded the
nunber of accidents.

MR. CGECRCE responded that there are a nunber of things being
done, but this bill says that if a youth is cited for drunk
driving or receives a ticket, it inpairs the youth's ability to
get the unrestricted license, so there is an incentive. There
are a nunber of bills that have passed and a nunber that have

been consi dered. One he recalled was the "use it and lose it"
bill: if an individual were caught drinking, then the youth
could not get a license until he/she turned 18 years old instead

of 16. M. George said there needs to be parental control, and
pointed out that kids drink when they are out after m dnight.
In Juneau, kids drive out to Eagle Beach and drink a six-pack

Whenever there is an accident, it is never just one kid in the
car; it is usually three or four [youths] com ng back from Eagle
Beach.

Number 2097

REPRESENTATI VE FATE asked if there are formal classes show ng
the effects of alcohol on driving, particularly with respect to
hi gh  school driver-education courses and private driving
school s.

MR. CGEORCE replied that he does not believe there is a nmandatory
prescribed outline for driver training. He said he believes any
good program would include it, but is pretty sure there are not
driver training prograns in all schools or available in all
areas [of the state]. Wil e Juneau, Anchorage, and Fairbanks
probably have them he said he believes many of the rural areas
do not. M. GCeorge summarized by saying he does not believe
there is any mandatory course naterial, but believes it should
be [included when or if there is].

Number 2049

M5. CASHEN told the comittee that there are no mnandatory
driver's education classes in the schools. The program was

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 18- April 1, 2003



dropped in the 1980s. M. Cashen said that when MADD approached
the Juneau School District about reinstituting the driver's
education program it was through a nonprofit with a grant, and
is a one-senester class that is not mandatory. She said the
class is very popular with the students and many students are
turned away. The same program is available in the Anchorage
School District, but nbst schools do not have driver's education
courses because of budget cuts. Ms. Cashen said that nost
courses that are available are so expensive that only the upper
class or mddle to upper class can afford them The | ower -
i ncome teenagers |lose out on that opportunity. She also said
that this is a new job sector that is necessary and could be
et .

CO CHAI R HOLM announced that that was the end of testinony on HB
213. [HB 213 was hel d over.]

ADJ OQURNVENT
Number 1981
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Transportation Standing Conmmittee neeting was adjourned at 3:30
p. m

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -19- April 1, 2003



